
Summons to Meeting

Monday 26 February 2018

Development Panel
Tuesday 6 March 2018, 1.00 pm

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
Membership:

Councillor Peter Bales (Chair) Councillor Billy Miskelly (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carole Armstrong
Councillor Nicky Cockburn Councillor Janet Farebrother
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Mark Jenkinson
Councillor Ron Munby Councillor Jim Osborn
Councillor Bill Pegram Councillor David Wilson

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Dean Devine on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1. Minutes of meeting Tuesday 6 February 2018 of Development Panel  

(Pages 3 - 18)

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from Councillors and members of the public – submitted in 
writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the 
meeting.

Page 1



5. 2/2017/0472 - Main Road, Maryport - Outline application for the demolition 
of factory unit and replace with up to 65 new dwellings with all matters 
reserved (resubmission)  (Pages 19 - 36)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
66592

6. 2/2018/0018 - Robian, Bolton Wood Lane, Wigton - Erection of a dwelling 
associated with agricultural contracting business  (Pages 37 - 46)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
74990

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Tuesday 3 April 2018, 1.00 pm
Council Chamber, Allerdale House

Page 2

http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=166592
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=166592
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=174990
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=174990


At a meeting of the Development Panel held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, 
Workington on Tuesday 6 February 2018 at 1.00 pm

Members

Councillor Peter Bales (Chair) Councillor Billy Miskelly (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Nicky Cockburn
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Mark Jenkinson
Councillor Jim Osborn Councillor Bill Pegram
Councillor Philip Tibble Councillor David Wilson

Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Carole Armstrong, Councillor 
Janet Farebrother and Councillor Ron Munby

Staff Present

D Devine, J Eaton, C Fearon, C Fleming, K Kerrigan, S Long and J Morgan

330. Minutes 

The minutes of the meetings held on 12 December 2017, 19 December 2017 
and 9 January 2018 were signed as correct records.

331. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

332. Questions 

None received.

333. 2/2017/0575 - Land Adjacent to Holroyd, Access to Wood Side Farm, 
Broughton Moor, Maryport - Proposed new access track and agricultural 
equipment store building (resubmission of 2/2017/0442) 

Representations

Christopher Storey spoke in objection to the application.

The agent, Daniel Addis and the applicant, Kevin Thompson spoke in support of 
the application.

Application

The Principal Planning Officer recommended approval.

The Principal Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main 
issues within the report as follows:

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 Siting of building

Officers consider insufficient information has been provided to justify the 
location of the building in an isolated location detached from the main 
farmstead.

 Amenity

Due to the location of the access track adjacent to an open boundary 
with the adjacent property “Holroyd” officers consider the proposal with 
impact on the amenity currently enjoyed by this property.

 Access

Cumbria Highways consider the proposed access is acceptable from a 
highway perspective.

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor N Cockburn moved that the application be refused as per the 
recommendations from officers. This was seconded by Councillor B Miskelly.

A vote was taken on the motion. The vote in favour of refusal was unanimous. 
The motion was carried.

Decision

Refused

Reasons

1. Officers consider insufficient justification has been provided for the siting 
of the agricultural building in an isolated location in the open countryside 
which is detached from the main farmstead contrary to Policy DM6 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

2. The position of the access track on elevated land adjacent to the 
boundary with the residential property of Holroyd will impact on the 
amenity this property currently enjoys from the vehicle movements 
associated with the proposed agricultural building contrary to Policies S2, 
S4 and S32 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

334. 2/2016/0294 - Kirk Cross Quarry, Low Road, Brigham, Cockermouth - 
Removal of conditions 9, 13, and 30  and variation of conditions 1, 2, 3, 14, 
20, 25 and 29 and revised S106 agreement to former approved consent 
2/2016/0311 

Representations

The agent, Margaret Hardy and the applicant, Nick Bailey spoke in support of 
the application.

Page 4



Application

The Planning Officer recommended approval.

The Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main issues within 
the report as follows:

 Principle of development

Established at outline stage with extant consent 2/2012/0784 for 50 
dwellings subject to a Section 106 Agreement for 30% affordable 
housing (12 dwellings) and contributions to education and transport. The 
site is classed as a ‘commitment’ within the Preferred Options document 
associated with Part 2 of the Allerdale Local Plan. Brigham as a 
settlement is categorised as a Local Service Centre. Villages within that 
part of the settlement hierarchy are expected to in combination, achieve 
20% of the housing growth for the district.

 Variation of outline consent

This application seeks a variation of the original outline consent to 
reduce the site capacity to 40 dwellings with an amended drainage 
strategy providing off-site drainage that will benefit the local area. The 
layout is no longer a reserved matter.

The applicant also seeks a variation of the Section 106 regarding a 
reduced number of affordable housing (8 dwellings) being a 20% 
provision. Contributions to education and transport are also to be omitted 
and deemed unnecessary by the County Council. A Financial Viability 
Assessment has been provided and assessed by the Council’s 
consultant to justify matters in favour of the applicant’s proposals.

 Layout

The application now commits to a layout of 40 dwellings that is 
acceptable in all respects and includes appropriate levels of open space 
and parking provision to meet Highway Authority parking standards.

 Drainage

A comprehensive attenuated drainage strategy has been provided with 
an outfall to Kirkcross Quarry Pond and onward to the River Derwent. 
The off-site drainage solution offered by the applicant takes surface 
water from lower Brigham via the Lime Kiln pond known as ‘The Cut’ and 
combined with the development site drainage. This brings significant 
community benefits, helps to safeguard the development itself from 
flooding and is the key factor regarding the planning balance against 
providing alternative benefits of, education and transport contributions.

Page 5



 Reserved matters

The outline approval will trigger the reserved matters application 
currently under consideration by the Council regarding precise design 
and appearance of the house types. An indicative schedule of house 
types has been provided that are considered satisfactory in all respects 
and achievable at this site.

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor M Grainger moved that the application be approved as per the 
recommendations from officers. This was seconded by Councillor T Annison.

A vote was taken on the motion. The vote in favour of approval was unanimous. 
The motion was carried.

Decision

Approved

Conditions

1. Before any works commence, details of the scale and appearance, 
(hereinafter called 'reserved matters') shall be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in 
accordance with the following plans:
11-18-01a - Site Location Plan
1718-216A - Site Layout (26/10/2017)
Email dated 12/11/2012 Regarding revised proposal description 
confirming reserved matters
Environmental Risk Assessment EES09-29 dated 29/5/2009
Ground Gas Assessment EES09-29 dated 23/7/2009
Risk Management Strategy EES12-099 dated 19/9/2012
Noise Assessment Report KDL/KB/NA/10/12 dated 19/10/2012
Tree Survey EESS09-29 dated 29/5/2009
Phase 1 Habitat Survey EES09-29 dated 29/5/2009
Environmental Documents Updates Statement EES12-099 dated 
19/9/2012
Transport Statement A078102 dated August 2012
Travel Plan A078102 dated September 2012
Technical Note A66 Junction Capacity Assessment A078102 dated 
December 2012 (amendment received 10/12/2012
Drainage Statement RO/11058.6 Version 9
11058 001 B - Engineering layout
11058 200 D - Proposed drainage layout sheet 1 of 2
11058 201 B - Propsed drainage layout sheet 2 of 2

Page 6



11058 202 B - Adoptable manhole Schedule
11058 203 A - Adoptable manhole 1:20 details sheet 1 of 2
11058 204 A - Adoptable manhole 1:20 details Sheet 2 of 2
11058 701 A - Proposed Drainage Construction details
11058 208 Rev C Off Site Drainage Layout
11058 C1001 Rev A Outfall Proposal
H40CA Proposed Headwall

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in 
complete accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-
material alterations to the scheme are properly considered.

3. The development shall begin no later than the expiration of two years 
from the approval of the 'reserved matters' or, in the case of approval on 
different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

Reason: In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

4. The carriageway, footways, footpaths, cycle ways etc shall be designed, 
constructed, drained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority 
and in this respect further details, including longitudinal/cross sections, 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval before 
work commences on site. No work shall be commenced until a full 
specification has been approved. Any works so approved shall be 
constructed before the development is complete.

Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests 
of highway safety.

5. The development shall not commence until visibility splays providing 
clear visibility of 2.4m x 103m in a south westerly direction and 129m in a 
north easterly direction measured down the centre of the access road 
and the nearside channel line of the major road have been provided at 
the junction of the access road with the county highway. Notwithstanding 
the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order) relating to permitted development, no structure, vehicle or object 
of any kind shall be erected, parked or placed and no trees, bushes or 
other plants shall be planted or be permitted to grown within the visibility 
splay which obstruct the visibility splays. The visibility splays shall be 
constructed before general development of the site commences so that 
construction traffic is safeguarded.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

6. Details of the vehicular crossing over the footway, including the lowering 
of kerbs, shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority and approved 
in writing. The works shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: To ensure a suitable standard of crossing for pedestrian safety.

Page 7



7. The surfacing of the access road shall extend for at least 10m inside the 
site, as measured from the highway boundary prior to the use first being 
commenced and shall be carried out in accordance with details of 
construction which shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

8. There shall be no vehicular access to or egress from the site other than 
via the approved access, unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To avoid vehicles entering or leaving the site by an 
unsatisfactory access or route, in the interests of road safety.

9. Before development commences, details of a suitably sited refuse bay on 
the surface road that serves numbers 25,26 and 27 shall be provided 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing. The refuse bay 
shall be implemented before occupation of the relevant phase of 
development.

Reason: The carrying out of this development without the provision of 
these facilities likely to lead to inconvenience and danger to road users.

10.Before any development takes place, a plan shall be submitted for the 
prior approval of the Local Planning Authority firstly reserving adequate 
land for the parking of vehicles engaged in construction operations 
associated with the development hereby approved, and that land, 
including vehicular access thereto, shall be used for or be kept available 
for these purposes at all times until completion of the construction works 
and secondly showing the construction vehicle routing to the site 
avoiding Brigham village centre.

Reason: The carrying out of this development without the provision of 
these facilities during the construction work is likely to lead to 
inconvenience and danger to road users.

11.The use shall not be commenced until the access and parking 
requirements have been constructed in accordance with the approved 
plan. Any such access and or parking provision shall be retained and be 
capable of use when the development is completed and shall not be 
removed or altered without the prior consent of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the 
development is brought into use.

12.Within three months of the occupation of the first dwelling, the developer 
shall prepare and submit to the Local Planning Authority for their 
approval a Travel Plan which shall identify the measures that will be 
undertaken by the developer to encourage the achievement of a modal 
shift away from the use of private cars to visit the development to 
sustainable transport modes, including targets and the appointment of a 

Page 8



Travel Plan Co-ordinator. The Travel Plan shall be the subject of annual 
review for a period of five years following the occupation of the first 
dwelling.

Reason: To aid in the delivery of sustainable transport objectives.

13.Prior to the commencement of development, further details of the surface 
water and foul water drainage systems (inclusive of how the scheme 
shall be maintained and managed after completion) shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage 
scheme submitted for approval shall be in accordance with the principles 
set out in the drainage statement RO/11058.6 version 9 (including off-site 
drainage improvements approved under ref 2/2016/0311) ; proposing 
surface water from the site discharging into the ponds and demonstrating 
a volumetric betterment by disconnecting highway drainage at High 
Brigham from the combined sewer and redirecting it into the surface 
water culverts. No part of the development shall be occupied until the 
drainage scheme has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
details. For the avoidance of doubt, neither surface water, land drainage, 
nor highway drainage shall connect into the public sewerage system 
(directly or indirectly). The development shall be completed, maintained 
and managed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a sustainable means of drainage from the site and 
minimise the risk of water pollution to the local water environment.

14.No development shall take place until a Construction and Demolition 
Method Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The statement shall include the following:
(a) Traffic Management Plan to include all traffic associated with the 
development, including site and staff traffic;
(b) Procedure to monitor and mitigate noise and vibration from the 
construction and demolition and to monitor any properties at risk of 
damage from vibration, as well as taking into account noise from 
vehicles, deliveries. All measurements should make reference to 
BS7445;
(c) Mitigation measures to reduce adverse impacts on residential 
properties from construction compounds including visual impact, noise, 
and light pollution;
(d) A written procedure for dealing with complaints regarding the 
construction or demolition;
(e) Measures to control the emissions of dust and dirt during construction 
and demolition;
(f) Programme of work for Demolition and Construction phase;
(g) Hours of working and deliveries;
(h) Details of lighting to be used on site.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring 
properties.

15.As part of the reserved matters required by Condition 1, full details of the 
proposed glazing of the dwellings is provided as specified in the noise 

Page 9



assessment report (KDL/KB/NA/10/12) dated 19 October 2012. The 
glazing shall be installed as approved and retained thereafter.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of housing development 
safeguarding residential amenity.

16.No development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of remediation options, 
identification of the preferred option(s), the proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, and a description and programme of 
the works to be undertaken including the verification plan.

Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination 
from the development to the local environment.

17.The approved remediation strategy shall be implemented and a 
verification report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, prior to the development (or relevant phase of 
development) being brought into use.

Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination 
from the development to the local environment.

18. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development that was not previously identified it must be 
reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on 
the part of the site affected must be halted and a risk assessment carried 
out and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Where unacceptable risks are found remediation and 
verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to the 
development (or relevant phase of development) being brought into use. 
All work shall be undertaken in accordance with current UK guidance, 
particularly CLR11.

Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination 
from the development to the local environment.

19.No part of the development hereby permitted shall be built above ground 
floor level until there has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority a scheme of hard and soft landscaping which shall 
include indications of all existing trees and shrubs on the site, and details 
of any to be retained, together with measures for the protection in the 
course of development. Details of the proposed landscaping shall include 
species as recommended in the Environmental Updates Statement 
EES12-099 dated 19/9/2012. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised 
within the scheme shall be carried out in the first planting season 
following completion of the development and any trees or plants which 
within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, 
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 

Page 10



replaced in the next planting season with other similar size and species, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to enhance the appearance of the development and 
minimise the impact of the development in the locality and to safeguard 
and promote biodiversity.

20.The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance 
with the mitigation measures as specified in the Phase 1 Habitat Survey 
EES09 29 dated 29/5/2009 and Environmental Updates Statement 
EES12-099 dated 19/9/2012.

Reason: In the interests of nature conservation and biodiversity.

21.The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance 
with the mitigation measures as specified in the Tree Survey EES09-29 
dated 29/5/2009 and Environmental Updates Statement EES12-099 
dated 19/9/2012.

Reason: In order to ensure that adequate protection is afforded to the 
existing trees to be retained on site.

22.The development hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance 
with the mitigation measures as specified in the Risk Management 
Strategy EES12-099 dated 19/9/2012 and Environmental Updates 
Statement EES12-099 dated 19/9/2012.

Reason: To minimise any environmental pollution from the development.

23.Before development commences, details of the siting, height and type of 
all means of enclosure (including acoustic wall/fencing to roadside plots 
as recommended in the Noise Assessment Report KDL/KB/NA/10/12 
dated 19/10/2012 shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences. Any such means of 
enclosure shall be constructed prior to the approved buildings being 
brought into use/occupied. All means of enclosure so constructed shall 
be retained and no part thereof shall be removed without the prior 
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development which is 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area and in the interests 
of noise abatement and general residential amenity.

24.Full details of the siting of play equipment within the open space as 
shown on the approved plans shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The play equipment as approved shall 
be implemented before the occupation of the sixteenth dwelling.

Reason: In order to provide an adequate provision of locally equipped 
play in the absence of any alternatives within the immediate locality.

Page 11



25.No development, including any demolition, shall take place until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall 
provide for:
(a) Timing of works;
(b) Methods used for all channel, bankside, water margin works;
(c) Protection of areas of ecological sensitivity and importance;
(d) The means of access for construction traffic;
(e) The loading and unloading of plant and materials;
(f) The storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development;
(g) Wheel washing facilities;
(h) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;
(i) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 
and construction works.
Any changes to these components require the express written consent of 
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented as 
approved.

Reason: To minimise any environmental pollution from the development.

26.Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall 
not be permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where 
it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to 
groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.

Reason: To minimise any environmental pollution from the development.

27.No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground on the footprint of 
the former landfill is permitted other than with the express written consent 
of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts of the 
site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant 
unacceptable risk to controlled waters. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approval details.

Reason: To minimise any environmental pollution from the development.

28.Prior to each phase of development approved by this planning 
permission no development approved by this planning permission shall 
take place until a scheme that includes the following components to deal 
with the risks associated with contamination of the site shall each be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority:
a) A pollution remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation 
measures required and how they are to be undertaken.
b) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in 
order to demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy 
are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring 
of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency 
action.

Page 12



Any changes to these components require the express written consent of 
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented as 
approved.

Reason: To minimise any environmental pollution from the development.

335. 2/2017/0549 - Mardale, William Street, Wigton - Demolition of existing 
building and erection of one new dwelling 

Application

The Principal Planning Officer recommended approval.

The Principal Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main 
issues within the report as follows:

 Principle of development

The replacement dwelling is located on a similar footprint to existing 
achieving a satisfactory relationship with the built format of Wigton.

 Design and appearance

The scale and appearance of the dwelling is considered acceptable.

 Amenity issues

The proposal will not significantly impact on the amenity of existing 
properties.

 Parking and highway issues

The applicant has provided a plan that shows onsite parking can be 
achieved.

 Flood Risk

The application site lies within Flood Zone 2 and 3. The proposal seeks a 
replacement dwelling with the applicant fully aware of the flood risk and 
has included mitigation measures into the redesign of the dwelling.

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor D Wilson moved that the application be approved as per the 
recommendations from officers. This was seconded by Councillor T Annison.

A vote was taken on the motion. The vote in favour of approval was unanimous. 
The motion was carried.

Page 13



Decision

Approved

Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in 
accordance with the following plans:
2017-104-10C - Site Layout and Streetscene (amendment received 19 
January 2018)
2017-104-11B revision B - Elevations and Floor Plans (amendment 
received 13 December 2017)
17-104-12A Location Plan (amendment received 19 January 2018)
Application Form - Section 10 Boundary Treatments
Scoping Survey Flood Risk Assessment

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in 
complete accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-
material alterations to the scheme are properly considered.

3. The development shall not be brought into use until visibility splays 
providing clear visibility delineated by straight lines extending from the 
extremities of the site frontage with the highway to points 2.4 metres 
along the centre line of the access drive measured from the edge of the 
adjacent highway has been provided. Notwithstanding the provisions of 
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) relating to 
permitted development, no structure, or object of any kind shall be 
erected or placed and no trees, bushes or other plants which exceed 1m 
in height shall be planted or be permitted to grow within the visibility 
splay which obstruct the visibility splays. The visibility splays shall be 
constructed before general development of the site commences so that 
construction traffic is safeguarded.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable standard of highway access during the 
construction and operational use of the site, in compliance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S2 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

4. Access gates, if provided, shall be hung to open inwards only away from 
the highway.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

5. The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until the vehicular 
access, parking and turning requirements have been constructed in 

Page 14



accordance with the approved plan and have been brought into use. The 
vehicular access, parking and turning provisions shall be retained and 
capable of use at all times thereafter and shall not be removed or altered 
without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of access, parking and turning 
provision when the development is brought into use.

6. Before the dwelling is occupied the existing access to the highway 
serving the garage shall be permanently closed and the boundary shall 
be reinstated in accordance with details which have been submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To minimise highway danger for construction or operational 
traffic and for the avoidance of doubt.

7. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development that was not previously identified it must be 
reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on 
the part of the site affected must be halted and a risk assessment carried 
out and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Where unacceptable risks are found remediation and 
verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to the 
development (or relevant phase of development) being brought into use. 
All works shall be undertaken in accordance with current UK guidance, 
particularly CLR11.

Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination 
from the development to the local environment in compliance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

8. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be built above plinth 
level until there has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority a scheme of hard and soft landscaping which shall 
include indications of all existing trees and shrubs on the site, and details 
of any to be retained, together with measures for the protection in the 
course of development. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised within 
the scheme shall be carried out in the first planting season following 
completion of the development, and any trees or plants which within a 
period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 
the next planting season with other similar size and species, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to enhance the appearance of the development and 
minimise the impact of the development in the locality.

Page 15



9. The works shall be implemented solely in accordance with the 
recommendations and mitigation measures outlined in Section 5 of the 
Scoping Survey.

Reason: To safeguard the habitat of bats in compliance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policy S35 of the Allerdale Local Plan 
(Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

10.The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be 
carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment 
(FRA) received dated November 2017 including its mitigation measures 
which shall be installed prior to the occupation of the dwelling.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and 
future occupants in compliance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Policy S29 of the Allerdale Local Plan, (Part 1), Adopted 
July 2014.

336. HOU/2017/0264 - Woodside, Low Seaton, Seaton - Proposed balcony to 
rear elevation of existing dwelling 

Application

The Principal Planning Officer recommended approval.

The Principal Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main 
issues within the report as follows:

 Residential Amenity

It is considered the proposal would not have a detrimental impact upon 
nearby neighbouring properties.

 Scale, Design and Materials

It is considered the proposal is appropriate in scale and design and 
would not adversely alter the appearance of the existing building.

 Highways

No concerns.

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor M Grainger moved that the application be approved as per the 
recommendations from officers. This was seconded by Councillor D Wilson.

A vote was taken on the motion. The vote in favour of approval was unanimous. 
The motion was carried.

Page 16



Decision

Approved

Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in 
accordance with the following plans:
JSR01 - Proposed Elevations
JSR02 - Block Plan and Location Plan
JSR03 - Detailed plan of balcony

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in 
complete accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-
material alterations to the scheme are properly considered.

The meeting closed at 2.15 pm

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0472

Proposed 
Development:

Outline application for the demolition of factory unit and replace 
with up to 65 new dwellings with all matters reserved 
(resubmission)

Location: Main Road
Maryport

Applicant: Mr Rob Cooke
Prospect Estates

Recommendation:

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle of 
Development

Policy S12 seeks to protect existing employment sites until 
reviewed through the site allocation process which has not be 
undertaken to date. Furthermore, Policy DM3 protects existing and 
allocated employment sites against non-employment uses to help 
ensure that there is a sufficient supply of employment land to meet 
the areas economic development requirements over the plan 
period. From the information that has been submitted with the 
application the applicant has not considered adequately alternative 
uses prior to the development of the site for housing. Officers 
consider the principle of developing the site for housing is contrary 
to Policy S12 and DM3 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), 
Adopted July 2014.

Amenity Officers consider in the absence of layout the applicant has not 
demonstrated that a satisfactory standard of residential amenity for 
future occupiers of the proposed dwellings can be achieved. 
Concern is also raised that the proposed housing development 
may prejudice the compatibility and delivery of existing and future 
B2 industrial land uses within the neighbouring industrial estates. 
The proposal is considered contrary to Policy S2, S4, S32 and 
DM14 Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014 and NPPF.

Access Officers are satisfied that an acceptable form of access(s) can be 
achieved at the site.

Flood Risk and 
Drainage

The submitted FRA concludes that the area is not at risk of 
flooding and the drainage scheme is acceptable. 

Ecology The submitted Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey considered the 
impact of demolishing the 3 buildings on site and all other 
ecological species. Whist Building 1 and 3 were assessed as 
having negligible bat roost potential, Building 2 was assessed as 
having low bat roost potential. A further Bat Survey showed no 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



signs of bats emerging from the Building and the loss of this 
building will have no potential impact on roasting bats. The 
proposal is in accordance with Policy S35 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014. 

Proposal

The application has been amended throughout the process of the current application. 
The applicant now seeks outline consent for the demolition of the factory unit and the 
erection of up to 65 dwellings with all matters reserved. 

Site

The site is located off the main route (A596) Main Road, running through Maryport. The 
sites itself measures 1.097 hectares and forms a significant block of land within an 
existing industrial area. The site currently houses large industrial units that are currently 
unoccupied and some hedge and small trees. The boundaries consist of red brick walls 
along North and West boundaries. To the north of the site is a pedestrian route with a 
wide tarmacked path to the rear of the surrounding terraced properties. Industrial units lie 
to the east, south and west. The site is surrounded on three sides by highways with a 
high level of on road parking to the west.

Relevant Policies

National Planning Policy Framework
Building a strong, competitive economy
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Requiring good design

Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2017
Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles
Policy S3 - Spatial Strategy and Growth
Policy S4 - Design principles
Policy S5 - Development Principles
Policy S7 - A mixed and balanced housing market
Policy S8 - Affordable Housing
Policy S12 - Land and Premises
Policy S21 - Developer contributions 
Policy S22 - Transport principles
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage
Policy S30 - Reuse of Land
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity
Policy S33 - Landscape
Policy S35 - Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity

Page 20



Policy DM3 - Protection of Employment Sites
Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design
Policy DM17 - Trees, hedgerows and woodland 

Relevant Planning History

2/2017/0265 Outline application for the demolition of factory unit and replace with 65b 
dwellings to include access and layout – Refused on the 7 September 2017 on the 
following grounds:

1. The proposal will result in the loss of an existing employment site under Part 1 of 
the Allerdale Local Plan. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the proposal 
complies with Policy S12 and DM3 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted 
July 2014 and Paragraphs 17, 18 and 19 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

2. The Local Planning Authority consider insufficient qualified evidence has been 
submitted to demonstrate a satisfactory standard of residential amenity for the 
future occupiers of the proposed dwellings and may prejudice the compatibility 
and delivery of existing and future B2 industrial land uses within the neighbouring 
industrial estates contrary to Policy S2, S4 and S32 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework paragraphs 17, 58, 61, 122 and 123.

3. Inadequate information has been submitted to satisfy the Local Planning Authority 
that the proposal is acceptable in terms:
a) Access
b) Road Construction
c) Effect on local traffic conditions and public safety.
The proposal is therefore contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policy S4 and DM14 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

4. The Local Planning Authority considers the applicant has failed to demonstrate the 
proposed layout achieves a satisfactory development which is compatible with the 
Local Area in terms of layout and its parking requirements. The proposal is 
contrary to Policy S2, S4, S5, S32 and DM14 Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), 
Adopted July 2014 and paragraphs 17, 56, 58 and 64 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

5.  The applicant has failed to demonstrate the proposed development would not 
prejudice the future maintenance of the existing public sewer running through the 
site based on the submitted layout plan.

6. In the absence of further ecology surveys the applicant has failed to demonstrate 
that the proposal has fully assessed the impacts on any potential protected bat 
species for building 2 it therefore fails to comply with Policy S35 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014 and paragraphs 109 and 117 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 21



7.  In the absence of any completed S106 planning obligation document which 
demonstrates the provision and deliver of local affordable housing within the 
proposed development the applicant has failed to demonstrate the proposal 
complies with Policy S8 of the Allerdale Local Plan (part 1), Adopted July 2014 
and paragraphs 47 and 50 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

This refusal was the subject of an appeal. Through additional information submitted with 
the appeal officers agreed that reasons 3 Highway details, 4 layout and parking, 5 
building over public sewer and 6 ecology reports have been addressed. The appeal was 
dismissed and inspector concluded:

“I am not satisfied that it has been shown that the appeal site has no future as an 
employment site, or that such a future could not be ensured by adaption or mixed use. 
There is also no satisfactory provision for affordable housing in the proposal. There is 
consequent conflict with the development plan, which is up to date and accords with the 
NPPF. No other matters outweigh the development plan conflict. For the reasons given 
above I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed. “ 

Representations

Maryport Parish Council – Concerns as expressed previously in relation to access & 
egress if new openings required and concern over loss of industrial land.

Environmental Health – Having considered the noise reports, there is an area on the 
proposed site where the noise levels are likely to cause an adverse impact on the future 
occupants of the dwellings at night due to fan noise which is not in the applicant’s control. 
Therefore without any agreement to reduce the noise levels of the fan the applicant will 
be unable to demonstrate that they can maintain a satisfactory standard of amenity for 
any future occupants that occupy dwellings facing West Port.  In addition to this the site 
is designated as an employment site within Solway Industrial Estate and we have 
concerns that this redevelopment for housing would not be compatible with other B2 uses 
that operate now or for future industrial development.

No objections are raised in relation to contamination subject to conditions. 

Cumbria Highways – The Transport Statement provided has addressed our previous 
comments on application 2/2017/0265 regarding the visibility splays and access. No 
objections subject to conditions.

Fire Officer – No reply to date.

Environment Agency – The desk study submitted in support of this planning application 
provides us with confidence that it will be possible to suitably manage the risk posed to 
controlled waters by this development.

The proposed development will be acceptable if a planning condition is included requiring 
the submission of a remediation strategy, carried out by a competent person in line with 
paragraph 121 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 22



United Utilities – United Utilities will have no objection to the proposed development 
subject to a condition.

A 375mm combined sewer crosses this site and we may not permit building over it. We 
will require an access strip width of six metres, three metres either side of the centre line 
of the sewer which is in accordance with the minimum distances specified in the current 
issue of "Sewers for Adoption", for maintenance or replacement. Therefore a modification 
of the site layout at the applicant's expense may be necessary.

Cumbria Wildlife Trust – No reply to date.

Cumbria Butterfly – No reply to date.

Cumbria Constabulary – I regret to advise that I do not have enough information from 
these brief statements in the design and access statement addendum to help me clarify 
how the issues raised have been addressed. 

Highways England – No objection.

Housing Services –  The Allerdale Local Plan (2014) requires 20% affordable provision 
on this development and the tenure split of affordable provision should be in line with that 
specified in Policy S8 of the Allerdale Local Plan (July 2014).

Access Officer – No objections in relation to access into buildings for disabled people.

Health and Safety Executive – HSE is a statutory consultee for certain developments 
within the consultation distance (CD) of major hazard sites and major accident hazard 
pipelines, and has provided planning authorities with access to HSEs Planning Advice 

The HSEs Planning Advice WebApp details that the development site which you have 
identified does not lie within the consultation distance (CD) of a major hazard site or 
major accident hazard pipeline; therefore at present HSE does not need to be consulted 
on any developments on this site.

County Planning – No reply to date.

The application has been advertised on site and in the local paper. Adjoining owners 
have been notified. 2 letters of objection have been received who believe we cannot 
afford to lose industrial land which would impact on existing businesses and the 
development will exacerbate existing traffic management problems. A further letter has 
been received that although does not oppose the development is concerned that if the 
demolition of the building if not carried out correctly this could impact on the structure of 
the nearby properties. A letter of support has been received who feel as the building has 
been stood empty for so long the site should be redeveloped. 

Page 23



Main Issues:

Principle of Development

The site lies within the settlement boundaries or Maryport and achieves a good 
relationship with the built format of Maryport in a sustainable location. It currently 
occupies a large existing employment site as saved under Part 1 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan. Policy S6b of the Allerdale Local Plan Part 1, states that a mix of employment land 
opportunities will be provided and that high quality development and refurbishment of 
existing employment sites such as Glasson, Solway and Risehow Industrial Estates will 
be supported. As an existing employment site, the principle of the development needs to 
be assessed against Policies S12 and DM3 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1). 

Policy S12 reads “Existing employment sites and allocations will be retained and 
safeguarded until these are reviewed through the site allocations process. During the 
review the Council will consider whether the sites meet, or can be improved to meet 
needs of modern business and consider opportunities to de-allocate sites of poor quality 
which may be better suited to alternative uses. The Council will develop robust criteria in 
order to review site suitability and where de-allocation is suggested priority will be given 
to alternative uses in sequence”.

The Council are still working on Part 2 site allocation of the Local Plan and to date a 
review of the employment sites has not been undertaken. The Council do not envisage 
that the final review will be completed prior to the end of 2018. However, there is also 
scope for some change in employment areas and this is controlled by Policy DM3 
Protection of Employment Sites of the Local Plan. 

Policy DM3 protects existing and allocated employment sites against non-employment 
uses to help ensure that there is a sufficient supply of employment land to meet the areas 
economic development requirements over the plan period. 

Policy DM3 reads “Proposals for redevelopment or to de-allocate existing employment 
sites of land, to an alternative use may be granted where the applicant has demonstrated 
to the satisfaction of the Council that; 

a) All or part of the site does not, and could not be reasonably upgraded to meet the 
current or long term needs of modern business;

b) The loss of the site would not significantly impact on the long term supply of the 
Plan Area employment land in terms of quality and quantity;

c) It would not undermine the spatial strategy of the local plan.”

The applicant has submitted evidence of the marketing exercise that has been carried 
out for the site over the last year or so which includes marketing carried out directly by 
the applicant company and the land for sale/rent with estate agents. The Council have 
commissioned an independent review on the marketing information submitted. This 
valuation report concluded that in relation to the asking rent/price they were of the 
opinion that these are realistic bearing in mind market conditions and the current existing 
use and are not likely to have deterred potential purchasers/occupiers. 

Whereas the Council are satisfied that the marketing may have been carried out for the 

Page 24



appropriate length of time and at an appropriate cost the applicant has still failed to 
demonstrate compliance with criteria a – c of Policy DM3. 

a) All or part of the site does not, and could not be reasonably be upgraded to meet 
the current or long term needs of modern business;

The internal layouts of the buildings have been stripped by the current owner. The site is 
offered for rent as a whole or in smaller parts with submitted information detailing that the 
buildings would need to be upgraded to allow occupation. However, no works have been 
undertaken. The letter from Walton Goodland details that as part of the marketing three 
enquires in total were received all of whom wanted approximately 1,500sq ft or less. The 
owner determined due to the size and scale of these requirements that it was not feasible 
to consider a wholesale demolition and redevelopment of the site. A further enquiry was 
received for approximately 10,000 sq. ft of industrial space. An inspection was 
undertaken with the interested party but unfortunately they required occupation with a 
tight timeframe and with significant works required in order to facilitate this the interested 
party decided to look elsewhere.  

The four enquires show that there is interest in the site for commercial purposes although 
on a smaller scale than the size of the buildings currently on site. The condition of the 
buildings is a factor in putting potential occupiers off the site. No information has been put 
before officers to demonstrate why the site could not be upgraded in such a way that it 
would become more attractive to potential buyers or tenants. Officers therefore cannot 
conclude that there is no reasonable prospect of the land being used for employment 
purposes in the future.  

b) The loss of the site would not significantly impact upon the long term supply of the 
Plan Area employment land in terms of quality and quantity

The applicant has provided limited information in this regards other than stating within the 
Planning Statement that “research indicates there is no shortage of available 
employment land in the local and surrounding area”. No information has been provided 
on what research they have carried out and what impacts this may have. 

Policy S3 states the Council will seek to maintain and review a rolling supply of high 
quality employment land. The development of this site would result in the loss of a large 
area of industrial land located in a suitable location within an established operating 
industrial estate. 

c) It would not undermine the spatial strategy of the local plan.

The proposal would fail to meet the objective of area policy S6b as it would not provide 
for high quality development and refurbishment of this existing employment site. The full 
assessment of site allocations is currently under way and whilst the Council accepts that 
employment land is not in short supply in the Borough the Solway Industrial Estate is part 
of the strategic supply for the Maryport area and is therefore considered an important 
location for employment land provision.

Policy DM3 then goes on to read ”In circumstances where land is released from 
employment use, the Council will give due regard to market signals and give preference 

Page 25



to the following in sequence:

d) A mix of employment and non-employment uses excluding residential; such as 
schemes that incorporate social infrastructure including compatible D1 uses such 
as education and training facilities, day centres, clinics and health centres;

e) A mix of uses which provide employment opportunities will be preferred to single-
use residential development. In the lower tier of the settlement hierarchy live/work 
units will be supported;

f) Proposals for change to single-use residential use will only be considered where it 
can be demonstrated that criteria d) and e) has been satisfied, and;

g) Only on sites within settlements that accord with the spatial strategy and are 
defined in the Settlement Hierarchy; and

h) Where applicants have considered the local housing allocation and provide robust 
evidence that there are no suitable alternatives for the proposal.”

In considering residential use only on the site criteria f) states residential use will only be 
considered where it can be demonstrated that criteria d) and e) has been satisfied that 
requires the applicant to demonstrate that a mix of employment and non-employment 
uses cannot be provided on the site. It has been suggested by the applicant that if there 
is no market for employment use there would be no market for mixed use. The agent has 
failed to demonstrate that the site could not be made more attractive for employment use, 
or in the alternative that a mix of employments uses would not be feasible. 

The Inspectors decision make direct reference to this issue

“8. In this instance I am aware that the Appellant has carried out a marketing exercise 
over the last year or so which has so far proved unsuccessful. However, I am not aware 
of any information that the site could not be upgraded in such a way that it would become 
more attractive to potential buyers or tenants. Simply offering the site as a whole or in 
smaller parts does not seem to me to take a proactive role towards the potential for 
innovative solutions. As such I cannot conclude that there is no reasonable prospect of 
the land being used for employment purposes in the future. 

9. The Council accepts that employment land is not in short supply in the Borough but 
points out that the Solway Industrial Estate is part of the strategic supply for the Maryport 
area. I therefore consider that it is an important location for employment land provision. 

10. In any event Policy DM3 establishes a preference for a mix of employment and non-
employment uses if a site is to be taken out of wholly employment use, with single-use 
residential development being less preferential. I am not aware that any such proposals 
have been considered by the Appellant. Rather it has been suggested that if there is no 
market for employment use there would be no market for a mixed use. I am not 
persuaded by that argument. In short I am not satisfied that it has been shown that the 
site could not be made more attractive for employment use, or in the alternative that a 
mix of employment and other uses would not be feasible.”

This ground of refusal was upheld in the recent appeal, and no further additional 
supporting information above and beyond that considered at the appeal has been 
submitted with the application.

Page 26



In assessing the current resubmission application officers consider the principle of 
developing the site for housing is contrary to Policy S6b, S12 and DM3 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

Amenity

The site lies in a mixed use area with housing to the northeast and employment to the 
remaining boundaries. In assessing the application the council needs to evaluate whether 
an appropriate housing development could be achieved on site which safeguards and 
secures a satisfactory standard of amenity for its future occupiers, and also the amenity 
of the surrounding area which includes businesses that could potentially be the source of 
noise issues are protected. 

Paragraph 123 of the National Planning Policy Framework states planning policies and 
decision should aim to;

 recognise that development will often create some noise and existing businesses 
wanting to develop in continuance of their business should not have unreasonable 
restrictions put on them because of changes in nearby land uses since they were 
established

The compatibility of the existing and proposed land uses and the sensitivity of potential 
impacts on amenity constituted one of the former grounds of refusal.

The matter of compatibility of land uses was also referred to in the appeal by the 
Inspector
 
“The Council has concerns relating to the relationship of housing with the neighbouring 
industrial uses. As layout is not a reserved matter this is a valid concern. Having seen the 
site I am not persuaded that it could not, in principle, be developed for residential 
purposes, but the information on the application is not sufficient to reach a definitive view 
on this matter. Greater clarity about the layout and configuration of individual dwellings 
would be required to be sure that residential and industrial uses could exist close 
together here. This matter does not weigh either in favour or against the proposal but is a 
matter which would require resolution prior to the grant of planning permission.”

The application is supported by a consultant’s noise report. (However it is also important 
to note that unlike the original application which included layout as part of its submitted 
details the current resubmission requests the layout to be alternatively submitted as a 
reserved matter.)  The applicants submitted noise report takes account of the following 
National Guidance:

BS 8233:2014 Guidance on Sound Installation and Noise Reduction for Buildings
This standard provides recommended guideline values for internal noise levels within 
dwellings which are similar in scope to guideline values contained within the World 
Health Organisation (WHO) document, Guidelines for Community Noise (1999).

World Health Organisation (WHO) Guidelines for Community Noise 1999
The WHO Guidelines 1999 recommends that to avoid sleep disturbance, indoor night-
time guideline noise values of 30dB Laeq for continuous noise and 45dB Lafmax for 

Page 27



individual noise events should be applicable.

BS 4142:2014 Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound
This standard sets out a method to assess the likely effect of sound from factories, 
industrial premises or fixed installations and sources of an industrial nature in commercial 
premises, on people who might be inside or outside a dwelling or premises used for 
residential purposes in the vicinity.

The submitted report has been appraised by the councils Environmental Health Officers.  

The merits of assessing potential noise impacts can be evaluated in two contexts;

Existing Landuses / Environment 

An indicative layout plan has been submitted with the application which shows a number 
of proposed dwellings located along the southeast boundary with direct access from the 
main highway facing the industrial unit occupied by West Port. A noise report has been 
submitted with the application which was undertaken to predict the potential impact of 
existing noise on a proposed development consisting of residential. Measurements were 
made in 4 locations of the proposed residential dwellings at the site between 06:00 – 
09:00 on a weekday morning to identify the existing ambient, maximum and background 
noise levels and to determine pre-development sound levels. This data was subsequently 
used to predict the potential impact of existing noise on residential proposal. 

The report highlights “Noise modelling was also used to predict noise levels at the 
nearest dwellings to be assessed in accordance with BS 4142:2014. With a correction 
factor for impulsivity and intermittency dwellings facing White Croft were predicted to 
have a low impact during daytime and night time periods. Dwellings facing West Port with 
a correction factor for impulsivity and tonality were shown to have a low impact during the 
daytime and a low to adverse impact level during the night time periods. The noise 
source was a fan located on the West Port site. An assessment has been made of the 
noise levels compared to other guidance contained within BS 8233:2014 and levels 
would be below the guidance level internally, with windows open. Additionally external 
amenity areas of the properties facing West Port are located to the rear of the buildings 
consequently at these locations noise from the fan would be shown to have a low impact 
when assessed with BS 4142:2014.”

This report highlights there is an area on the proposed site where the noise levels at 
night from external areas are likely to cause an adverse impact on the future occupants 
of the dwellings at night due to fan noise. The fan noise is operated by a company that is 
outside the applicants control and does not have any connection with the developer 
Therefore there is no control over this noise emission. Officers are concerned without any 
agreement to reduce the noise levels of the fan the applicant will be unable to 
demonstrate that they can maintain a satisfactory standard of amenity for external 
domestic area for dwellings near West Port. The applicant has advised that the 
development would meet the requirements of BS 8233:2014 and WHO guidelines for 
internal and external noise (which would need to be conditioned) however an 
assessment in line with BS 4142:2014 does suggest that at night the noise would have 
an adverse impact within the area.  

Page 28



Whilst officers accept that through the inclusion of the mitigation measures proposed 
such as a noise barrier to the northwest boundary with the Main Road and partially to the 
northeast boundary, acoustic glazing specification and ventilation a suitable level of 
protection against noise could protect the occupants of the proposed internal 
accommodation. This has not been fully established for the external areas.   

Officers are not satisfied that the submitted noise report adequately demonstrates that 
the proposal will provide an acceptable standard of development in terms of amenity 
noise issues. The noise report when considering the impacts has been assessed on a 
plan which is now indicative only therefore, when the report highlights that the external 
amenity areas for the properties facing West Port are located to the rear of the buildings 
this is incorrect as we are not considering the layout as part of the current application. 
Furthermore, they are working on the assumption that if drives and garden areas were 
provided to the front facing West Port then these would not be used as external amenity 
areas. The Council need to consider the worst case scenario which as layout is not to be 
considered could result in rear amenity spaces facing West Port and occupiers often sit 
out in external amenity areas later into the evenings in Summer months. The recordings 
on site that provide the predicted levels within the report where based on a single visit on 
a weekday morning between 06:00-9:00, no weekend recordings were taken or night 
time visits in association with this development. A noise report was carried out for 
application 2/2017/0298 for a Peaking Power Generation Plant and ancillary equipment. 
The noise report for the current application states that night time readings were taken 
from this report with no recordings taken within the proposed residential site itself but at a 
representative location approximately 200m from the site on the opposite side of White 
Croft. Officers would questions whether the submitted noise report is providing a true 
reflection of noise. Therefore the Council agree with the inspector that greater clarity 
about the layout and configuration of individual dwellings would be required to be sure 
that residential and industrial uses could exist together.

Future Industrial Landuses

The issue of future long term industrial development on this main strategic industrial site 
within Maryport also requires consideration.

The site is designated as an employment site within Solway Industrial Estate and 
concerns are raised that this redevelopment for housing would not be compatible with 
other future B2 uses that may operate in the future. Given that the businesses are 
located within on an industrial estate their hours of operating are often not restricted and 
therefore evening and night time workings could be increased which may result in higher 
levels of noise experienced by occupiers of the dwellings. Furthermore the reoccupation 
of existing B2 landuses by new potentially more polluting landuses may not in itself 
require planning permission. As a consequence any such noise mitigation measures e.g. 
triple glazing, which are designed to meet specific noise thresholds (bespoke to the site 
based on existing circumstances) fulfil their purposes and therefore would be 
unenforceable. 

The level of noise created from commercial units can differ significantly depending on the 
type of business that is been operated and the scale of the business. Due to these often 
having a high level of vehicle movements both to the site and from internal operations 
such as fork lift trucks with audible sirens the level of noise impact can be changeable. If 

Page 29



planning permission was granted on the site for residential which shares two boundaries 
with existing industrial units this may limit future redevelopment of land within the 
industrial area and result in the need for restrictions to the operations or hours to take 
into account of the nearby residential development if change of use applications were 
received which previously would not have been restricted.  

Given that the layout is now reserved and the fact that the noise report raises potential 
noise impact officers do not consider the applicant has been able to demonstrate that 
residential and industrial uses could exist close together here.

The application should be judged on its individual merits based on its submitted 
description. Whilst the applicant has conceded layout to alternatively be a reserved 
matter the density has remained as originally submitted. Greater clarity about the layout 
and configuration of individual dwellings is required for the scale and density of the 
proposed housing to be sure that industrial uses could exist close together here. These 
concerns are reflected in a verbal response of the Environmental Health Officer. (A 
detailed response will be included on the Panel’s late list). 

The Inspectors decision specifically states the necessity for the inclusion of layout and 
configuration of dwellinghouses to qualify the compatibility of the housing and the 
industrial landuses. Albeit some aspects of configuration have been provided as 
mitigation a full picture of the layout, especially given the density of the proposed 
development fails to deliver the requirements requested by the Inspector. 

The proposal is considered contrary to Policy S2, S4 and S32 of the Allerdale Local Plan 
(Part 1), Adopted July 2014 and the National Planning Policy Guidelines.

Access

The revised application has been supported by a Transport Statement. Highway Officers 
have assessed this document and consider it address their previous comments made as 
part of application 2/2017/0265. The indicative layout plan shows a single access road 
proposed from the highway to the west with a number of individual access points to serve 
the dwellings from the road to the west and south of the application site.

It is considered that an appropriate from of access could achieved at this site whether 
from a single access point or the inclusion of direct accesses from the road and therefore 
no objections are raised on this matter with the final assessment been made through any 
reserved matters application.

Flood Risk and Drainage Assessment

The Environment Agency’s Flood Map shows the proposal site lies within Flood Zone 1, 
the lowest probability of flooding, that is, land assessed as having less than 1 in 1,000 
annual probability of river flooding. A detailed Flood Risk Assessment has been 
submitted that concludes the area is not at risk of flooding, but recommends the 
proposed floor levels are at least 300mm above site or adjacent road level, whichever is 
the higher. This could be conditioned.

The FRA details the foul is proposed to the public sewer with surface water either to 

Page 30



soakaway or watercourse. United Utilities have assessed the proposal and raise no 
objections subject to a condition detailing the drainage shall be carried out in accordance 
with principles set out in the submitted FRA.

United Utilities advised that a 375mm combined sewer crosses this site and they may not 
permit building over it. An access strip width of six metres, three metres either side of the 
centre line is required. Given that the location of the sewer is close to three of the 
boundaries of the site it is considered reasonable that a condition could be attached to 
the approval ensuring the sewer including the required easement is not built over.

Ecology

The site consists predominately of buildings and hardstanding with small areas of tall 
ruderals and occasional scattered trees. The application would see these buildings 
demolished to allow a housing estate to be built. An Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey 
has been submitted with the application. There are numerous buildings on site, the 
majority of which were similar in construction and interconnected inside. The buildings 
have been split into three for the purpose of the ecology report. 

Building 1 and 3 did not provide the necessary suitable climatic conditions to support 
roosting bats due to the metal corrugated roof and wall sheets. There were occasional 
gaps and access points to the internals but no field signs were found on the internal 
inspection. Furthermore, no roof voids were identified and the roof was unlined within the 
warehouse sections. Therefore, both buildings were assessed as having negligible bat 
roost potential in accordance with the Bat Conservation Trust Good Practice Guidelines.

The brickwork and roof on Building 2 was in good condition, however, small gaps were 
seen within the wooden eaves on the north-eastern and north-western aspects of this 
building. There were also small gaps seen underneath the preformed edge of the flat 
roof. These features would be suitable to support individual opportunistic roosting bats 
during the active bat season. Therefore, Building 2 was assessed as having low bat roost 
potential in accordance with the Bat Conservation Trust Good Practice Guidelines. 

The trees on site were assessed for their bat roost potential. No features suitable to 
support roosting bats were identified within the surveyed area. Therefore, all trees were 
assessed as having negligible bat roost potential in accordance with the Bat 
Conservation Trust Good Practice Guidelines.

Whilst the site is not considered to have a significant impact on ecology, the report 
recommended a further dusk emergence or dawn return survey is carried out on Building 
2 which was assessed as having low bat roost potential. If bats are found to be roosting 
in the building, further surveys may be necessary. The bat survey must be carried out 
within the main bat activity period, which extends from May to August each year.

The applicant has submitted a further Bat Survey that was carried out on the 3 August 
2017. The survey details that no bats were seen to emerge from Building 2 during the 
dusk emergence survey and no bats showed any interest in the area of the building, 
which were highlighted to provide suitable bat roosting habitat. As no bats emerged from 
the building and the building provides limited opportunities for roosting bats, any works 
undertaken on Building 2 will have no potential impact on roosting bats. 

Page 31



The surveys undertaken demonstrate the proposal will not have an unacceptable harm 
on protected species. Subject to the development been carried out in accordance with 
the recommendations within the reports the proposal complies with Policy S35 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

Affordable Housing

The site lies within the settlement limits of Maryport. Policy S8 of the Allerdale Local Plan 
requires the development to provide 20% affordable housing, tenure 75% social rent and 
25% intermediate affordable units. The submitted information details the applicant’s 
agreement to provide affordable housing on the site, which would be secured via a S106 
agreement. The Councils Housing Services Team response details that the 2016 housing 
study is mostly for 4 bed properties with a smaller need for three and one bed properties 
suitable for older persons. The Choice Based Lettings shows a higher need for 1 and 2 
bed dwellings, flats and bungalows. 

Through detailed discussions with the applicant they are agreeable to provide 20% 
affordable units split 75% social rent and 20% intermediate affordable units in a mix of 
one, three and four bed units to include bungalows. This would be secured via a S106 
agreement. Subject to the drawing up of a S106 agreement the proposal complies with 
Policy S8 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

Other Issues:

The Supplementary Planning Document details the requirement for developer 
contributions. This includes Provision for Children and Young People which typically 
comprises of areas containing pieces of play equipment. This details that for 
developments of 50-79 dwellings there is a requirement for either a financial contribution 
to upgrade existing equipped area of play within walking distance of the site or for a play 
area to be provided on site. Given the distance of the site from the nearest equipped area 
of play officers consider it is necessary to provide an equipped are of play on the site. 
The applicant is agreeable to this and has confirmed they are happy to enter into a S106 
agreement for an area of equipped play that equate to 1.34m2 per unit provided. The 
exact details of the play equipment itself could be secured via condition.

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act the proposal will benefit 
from New Homes Bonus, future Council Tax Revenue and the provision of affordable 
units.

Conclusion
The onus is with the developer to demonstrate that the resubmission has overcome and 
addressed the reasons of refusal from the earlier application and its subsequent 
dismissed appeal. Albeit most of the refusal grounds in the earlier decision have been 
resolved, the fundamental remaining grounds for the dismissal of the appeal continue to 
prevail.

Page 32



The proposal to erect 65 residential units on this site would result in existing employment 
land been lost. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the proposal complies with 
Policy S12 Land and Premises and Policy DM3 Protection of Employment Sites, which 
seeks to protect existing employment land. Furthermore the applicant has failed to 
demonstrate that residential and industrial uses could exist close together here.

Page 33



Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

1. The proposal will result in the loss of an existing employment site under 
Part 1 of the Allerdale Local Plan. The applicant has failed to demonstrate 
that the proposal complies with Policy S12 and DM3 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014 and Paragraphs 17, 18 and 19 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

2. The Local Planning Authority consider in the absence of layout insufficient 
evidence has been submitted to demonstrate a satisfactory standard of 
residential amenity can be achieved for the future occupiers of the proposed 
dwellings The proposed residential development would potentially prejudice 
the operation of existing and future B2 industrial land uses within the 
neighbouring industrial estate contrary to Policy S2, S4 and S32 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 17, 58, 61, 109, 122 and 123.

Proactive Statement

Application Refused Following Discussion – Where there is no Way Forward

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern with the proposal and discussing those with the Applicant.  However, 
the issues are so fundamental to the proposal that it has not been possible to negotiate a 
satisfactory way forward and due to the harm which has been clearly identified within the 
reason(s) for the refusal, approval has not been possible.

Page 34



P
age 35



P
age 36



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2018/0018

Proposed 
Development:

Erection of a dwelling associated with agricultural contracting 
business

Location: Roblan
Bolton Wood Lane
Wigton

Applicant: Mr R Turner

Recommendation: REFUSE

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle of 
development The application site is located in the open countryside outside any 

defined settlement limit. The information provided has not 
demonstrated that there is an essential need for a rural worker to 
live permanently at or near to their place of work to meet the 
functional requirements of the business.  

The Local Planning Authority considers the proposed dwelling 
constitutes an inappropriate, non-essential form of residential 
development in the open countryside outside of the defined 
settlement limits and would therefore be contrary to the
provisions of Policies S3 and DM2 of the Allerdale Local Plan
(Part 1) Adopted July 2014 and paragraph 55 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

Proposal

The proposal is for the erection of a dwelling associated with an agricultural contracting 
business. The application has been made in full, and the submitted plans show a single 
storey three bedroom dwelling of part stone, part render external appearance. The 
proposed dwelling would be located to the south east of the existing buildings used for 
the storage of agricultural contracting machinery/equipment and would utilise an existing 
access that serves the business.    

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Site

The application site relates to a small field laid to grass and extends to 0.08ha. The field 
is bounded by hedgerow to the front and rear and to the southern boundary. The site is 
open to the northern boundary where it adjoins the buildings associated with the 
agricultural contracting business. To the immediate north of this commercial building is 
the residential property Roblan, which is occupied by the applicant’s parents.  Some 
mature trees are located within the hedge line.  The application site lies in the open 
countryside, to the south of a small cluster of dwellings and the aforementioned 
agricultural contractors business that extend south from Bolton Wood Lane Farm. The 
village of Bolton Low houses lies 2km to the west and Wigton is 4km north.

Relevant Policies

National Planning Policy Framework 
Supporting a prosperous rural economy
Promoting Sustainable Transport
Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Requiring good design 
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014 
Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles Policy 
S3 - Spatial Strategy and Growth 
Policy S4 - Design principles 
S7 – A mixed and balanced housing market
S22 – Transport Principles
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage 
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity 
Policy S33 – Landscape
Policy DM2 - Rural workers dwellings 
Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design 
Policy DM17 – Trees, Hedgerows and Woodland

Relevant Planning History

2/2018/0039 – Extension to existing implement shed, decision pending.

Representations

Boltons Parish Council – no objection
Fire Service – no objection.
United Utilities – no objection. Foul and surface water to be drained separately. Surface 
Water to follow the drainage hierarchy. 
Highways Authority – request further details of the existing access construction. 
Environmental Health – recommend conditions for contaminated land and a tie to the 

Page 38



existing agricultural use adjacent. 
The application has been advertised by neighbour letter and site notice. No 
representations have been received to date. 

The application has been called in by Cllr Grainger.

Main Issues:

Principle of the Development

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires that local planning authorities 
identify sufficient deliverable sites to provide five year supply of housing against their 
housing requirements. Allerdale Borough Council issued a 5 year Housing Supply 
Statement in June 2017, which concluded that it is able to demonstrate a 5.3 year supply 
of deliverable housing, which includes a 20% buffer allowance due to a record of under-
delivery. Demonstration of a five year supply of deliverable housing sites means the 
policies for the supply of housing contained within the Local Plan are considered to be 
up-to-date, in accordance with paragraph 49 of National Planning Policy Framework. The 
policy framework for the supply of housing within the plan area is set out in Policy S3 - 
Spatial Strategy of the Allerdale Local Plan Part 1 (ALPP1). 

Policy S3 seeks to concentrate the necessary new housing development in identified 
towns and villages in accordance with a settlement hierarchy. The application site lies 
within the open countryside and therefore does not form part of the identified settlement 
hierarchy to accommodate additional new build dwellings. 

Policy S3 highlights that proposals outside defined settlements will be limited to certain 
circumstances identified in criteria (a) to (j). This application has been submitted on the 
basis of criteria (a), housing essential for rural workers in the operation of a rural based 
enterprise. 

Policy DM2 of the ALPP1 provides more specific advice on the assessment of such 
applications. Policies S3 and DM2 reflect national guidance within paragraph 55 of the 
NPPF which states that, ‘Local planning authorities should avoid new isolated homes in 
the countryside unless there are special circumstances such as; (1) the essential need 
for a rural worker to live permanently at or near their place of work in the countryside; or 
(2) where such development would represent the optimal viable use of a heritage asset 
or would be appropriate enabling development to secure the future of heritage assets; or 
(3) where the development would re-use redundant or disused buildings and
lead to an enhancement to the immediate setting; or (4) the exceptional quality or 
innovative nature of the design of the dwelling.

Therefore to demonstrate compliance with policy S3 (a) and DM2, it must be 
demonstrated that:

 The proposal relates to a ‘rural worker’ such as those directly employed in 
agriculture, forestry, or other land based industries.

 There is an ‘essential’ need for that rural worker to live permanently at or near 

Page 39



their place of work. 

Such dwellings will only be permitted where they relate to a business unit that is 
established and profitable (for at least three years) and that it has been demonstrated 
that no other buildings or dwellings locally, could fulfil the need. 

Workers associated with agricultural contracting businesses are not generally considered 
to be ‘rural workers’ in that the business itself, whilst providing a service to land based 
industries, is not in itself a land based industry. Such businesses are not directly 
dependent or tied to a particular area of land, but can be located within and serve a wide 
farming area. However, it is acknowledged that on a number of similar proposals for 
dwellings for agricultural contracting workers, Members of the Development Panel have 
reached a different view on this matter and have supported a number of such schemes: 
(2/2015/0160 near Newton Arlosh, 2/2016/0494 near Bridekirk and 2/2017/0181 near 
Boltongate). 

Having regard to these previous decisions, where it is accepted that an agricultural 
contracting business requires a ‘rural worker’ as required by policies S3 and DM2 of the 
ALPP1, it remains necessary in each case to assess whether it has been demonstrated 
by the applicant that there is an essential need for a rural worker to live permanently at, 
or near to their place of work. 

The applicant’s submission is summarised as follows: 

 The applicant operates the agricultural contracting business with his 
father as a joint venture. The applicant’s parents live adjacent to the 
agricultural contracting business at ‘Roblan’.

 The applicant lives in Wigton and commutes on a daily basis, often from 
early morning, until late at night depending on the season and with the 
business reliant on the farming community.

 The applicant’s presence on site would be beneficial to the long term 
sustainability of the business, being able to respond quickly to the needs 
of their customer base as his father approaches retirement from the 
business. 

 The business provides specialist services to the farming community and 
there is a need to keep plant and equipment up to date, regularly 
investing in the purchase of new equipment to take account of modern 
farming techniques and consequently there is high value machinery on 
site. 

 The opportunity to build a dwelling on the land that is in the ownership of 
the family will greatly reduce the cost of building and therefore make the 
business more financially sustainable long term. 

 There are no buildings on site that can be converted or adapted to 
become a dwelling. 

 An indicative build cost is £90,000 and will be less to mortgage than the 
current rent being paid and as such make the existing business more 
sustainable. 

Page 40



A functional test is used to establish whether it is essential for the proper functioning of 
the business for one or more workers to be readily available on site at most times. The 
information provided with the proposal does not demonstrate that there is any essential 
need for a worker to be available on site at this business. Whilst the working hours may 
be long at times to reflect farming practises, there is no essential requirement for workers 
to be on hand day and night to deal with distressed livestock, for example. The 
submission refers to the high value of the machinery kept on site, however, security 
reasons are not often sufficient grounds alone to justify the need for rural workers 
dwellings and no information has been provided to suggest that security problems have 
arisen at this site in the past. In this instance, there is already a worker present on site 
(the applicant’s father) and the proximity of neighbouring houses would act as some 
deterrent in security terms, therefore there appears to be no justification for a second 
workers dwelling. 

The supporting information indicates that the applicant currently lives in Wigton, which is 
approx. 4km away and approx. a 10 minute commute. Given such a short distance, it is 
difficult to establish from the information provided, why the functioning of an agricultural 
contracting business would be harmed in any way by an associated worker being located 
at this distance from the business, even where assistance is required at short notice.  

As such, whilst the information provided by the applicant confirms that it would be 
desirable and beneficial to them to be located on site, it is not considered that there has 
been demonstrated an essential functional need for a second workers dwelling to be 
located at or near this business. 

If a case had been made, then it is accepted that no other buildings on site could be 
converted to meet this need. However, no information has been provided by the applicant 
to demonstrate that there are no existing dwellings within the locality that could provide 
the requested accommodation. 

The applicant indicates that the business has operated in the region of 40 years. No 
information has been provided on the economic viability of the business, although it is 
assumed that this would be forthcoming, if an essential need for the proposal had been 
demonstrated. 

The proposed dwelling would be of a moderate scale, although limited information has 
been provided to demonstrate that the size, cost and construction would be 
commensurate to the functional requirements of the business. It is assumed that this 
would be forthcoming, if an essential need for the proposal had been demonstrated.

To conclude on this main issue, Officer’s consider that the information provided with the 
application is not sufficient to demonstrate that there is any essential need for a further 
worker associated with this agricultural contracting business to be located at or near their 
place of work. In this case, which differs from those previously considered by Members 
under applications 2/2015/0160 near Newton Arlosh, 2/2016/0494 near Bridekirk and 
2/2017/0181 near Boltongate most notably because there is an existing worker already 
present on site, and there is no information to suggest that the functional needs of this 
business would be harmed by not allowing a workers dwelling at this location, with or 
without the presence of the existing residential dwelling Roblan. 

Page 41



Sporadic and non-essential housing development within the open countryside is 
inherently unsustainable and results in the encroachment of the built form into the open 
countryside. The proposal as submitted is considered to be contrary to policies S3 and 
DM2 of the ALPP1.  

Other Material Considerations

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning 
decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. As outlined above, the proposal is considered to be 
contrary to policies S3 and DM2 of the ALPP1. Regard has been had to a number of 
decisions by the Council relating to similar proposals over the last few years, where 
permission for dwellings associated with agricultural contracting businesses have been 
granted. Each case must be determined on its individual planning merits. There are 
notable differences between the current proposal and those previously considered. In 
relation to the applications at Bridekirk and Newton Arlosh, whilst agricultural contracting 
formed part of the business, in both cases, there were more traditional agricultural 
practices taking place also, (namely managing livestock). The previously approved 
scheme at Boltongate shares more similarities with the current proposal, but it did not 
involve a second workers dwelling. Having considered these previous decisions as a 
material consideration, they are not considered to outweigh the conflict with policy 
outlined above. 

Other Issues:

Access and Parking

It is noted that the Highways Authority has requested further information relating to the 
construction of the existing access to be utilised. Having visited the site, it is Officer’s 
opinion that the existing access would be suitable to serve an additional dwelling, having 
regard to the visibility achievable and the low levels of traffic using this country lane. No 
further information has therefore been requested in this respect. 

Drainage

The proposal indicates a package treatment plant for disposal of foul drainage and 
connection to watercourse for the disposal of surface water. It is considered that the 
appropriate disposal of foul and surface water could be adequately dealt with by 
condition. 

Contaminated Land

Environmental Health colleagues recommend conditions in this respect, should planning 
permission be granted. 

Trees and Hedgerows

The site is bounded by hedgerow to three sides and there are a number of mature trees 
positioned within the hedgerow to the front. Given the layout proposed, it is not 
considered that the proposal would raise conflict with these trees and no hedgerow would 

Page 42



require removal given the use of the existing access. As such, the proposal is considered 
acceptable having regard to policy DM17 of the ALPP1. 

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act, the proposal would have 
financial implications relating to New Homes Bonus and Council Tax Revenue.

Conclusion

The proposal would constitute non-essential housing development in the open 
countryside, which would be inherently unsustainable and result in the encroachment of 
the built form into the open countryside, contrary to policies S3 and DM2 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan and Paragraph 55 of the NPPF. No material planning considerations are 
considered to outweigh this conflict with both local and national policy and therefore the 
application is recommended for refusal.

Page 43



Annex 1

Reason for refusal

The proposed dwelling constitutes an inappropriate form of non-essential residential 
development within the open countryside, outside of any defined settlement limit.  
The proposal is therefore contrary to the Policies S2, S3 and DM2 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1) Adopted July 2014 and paragraph 55 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

Proactive Statement

Application Refused Following Discussion – Where there is no Way Forward

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern with the proposal and discussing those with the Applicant.  However, 
the issues are so fundamental to the proposal that it has not been possible to negotiate a 
satisfactory way forward and due to the harm which has been clearly identified within the 
reason(s) for the refusal, approval has not been possible.

Notes to Applicant: None

Page 44



P
age 45



P
age 46


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Tuesday 6 February 2018 of Development Panel
	5 2/2017/0472 - Main Road, Maryport - Outline application for the demolition of factory unit and replace with up to 65 new dwellings with all matters reserved (resubmission)
	6 2/2018/0018 - Robian, Bolton Wood Lane, Wigton - Erection of a dwelling associated with agricultural contracting business

